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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of SPML INFRASTRUCTURE L|MITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

we have audited the financiaI statements of SPML INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED (the ,Company'), which comprise
the batance sheet as at 31 March 2024, the statement of profit and loss (inctuding Other Comprehensive income),
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financiaI statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the exptanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies ,2013 ('the Act")in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standard) Rule, 2015, as amended ('lnd AS') and the other
accounting principtes generaIty accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024,
and its loss, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash ftows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,20'13. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the auditor's responsibitities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (lCAl) together with the independent requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, and we
have futfilled our other ethicat responsibrtities in accordance with these requirements and the lCAl's Code of
Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financia[ statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw your attention to the fottowing:

To note number 2.01 (c) of the financiat statements, with regard to the management assertion on going concern
assumption and preparing the financjaI statement on going concern basis. Though there are materia[ uncertainties
affecting the going concern of the company, in the opinion of management, the company witt be abte to generate
the sufficient cash ftows from its existing & future projects and meet its obtigations.

Head office:88 Middleton Street,64 Geeranjali, Kolkata 700071, lndia
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To note number 5 of the financial statement, with regard to provision for impairment in the value of investments
in subsidiaries and other companies based on the present legaI proceedings in the respective companies and
opinion obtained by the company from the lawyer.

To note number 45 of the financiaI statements, with regard to the merger of Doon Valty Waste Management Private
Limited through the merger vide order dated 23'd June 2023 by Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunat (NCLT)

benched at Bengaturu.

To note number 47, with regard to sale of shares in Jaora-Nayagoan TotI Road Co Private Limited in prior years
though there is a non-comptiance of terms/restrictions placed by the sharehotders'agreement and without
obtaining the no objection from lDBl bank, though share were ptedged against the borrowing of Jaora-Nayagoan
Tott Road Co Private.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Information Other than the Financial statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsibte for the preparation of other information. The other information
comprises the information inctuded in the board's report inctuding annexures to boards report and shareholder's
information, but does not incIude the financiaI statements and our auditor's reDort tnereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibitity is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materiatly inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowtedge obtained during the course of our audit, or otherwise appears to be materiatty misstated.

lf, based on the work we have performed, we conctude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements.

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsibte for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financiaI statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash ftows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generatty accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
(lnd AS) specified under Section 1 33 of the Act.

This responsibitity atso inctudes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregutarities; selection and apptication of appropriate accounting poticies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonabte and prudent: and design, imptementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controts, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and compteteness of the accounting records,
retevant to the preparation and presentation of the financiaI statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from materiat misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsibte for assessing the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern, disctosing, as applicable, matters retated to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting untess management either intends to tiquidate the Company or cease operations, or has no reatistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors of the Company are responsibte for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibility for the audit of the Financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financiat statements as a whote are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that inctudes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high levet of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs wit[ atways detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered materiaI if, rndrviduatty or in the aggregate, they coutd reasonabty be expected
to inftuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financia[ statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We atso:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financiat statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resutting from error, as fraud may invotve cottusion,
forgery, intentionaI omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internat control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controts retevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsibte for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internaI financiaI controts with
reference to financia[ statements in ptace and operating effectiveness of such controts.

Evatuate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabteness of accounting estimates
and retated disctosures made bv the Board of Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists retated to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's abitity to continue as a going concern. lf we conctude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disctosures in the financiaI statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conctusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overa[[ presentation, structure and content of the financiaI statements, inctuding the
disctosures, and whether the financial statements represent the undertying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiatity is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individualty or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonabty knowtedgeabte user of the financiaI statements
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may De lnf luenced' We consider quantitative materiatity and quatitative factors in (i) ptanning the scope of ouraudit work and in evatuating the resutts of our work; and (ii) to evatuate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financiaI statements.

we communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the ptanned scope andtiming of the audit and significant audit findings, inctuding any significant deficiencies in internal control thatwe identify during our audit"

we also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have comptied with retevant ethicat
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them att relationships and other matters that
may reasonabty be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicabte, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and Regulatory requirements

1) As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained att the information and exptanations which to the best of our knowtedge
and betief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by taw have been kept by the company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books:

(c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (inctuding other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash ftows deatt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financiaI statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards notified
under Section 133 of the Act, as amended;

(e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31st March 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disquatified as on
3lstMarch2024frombeingappointedasadirectorintermsof Section 164(2)of theAct:and

(f ) with respect to the adequacy of the internaI financiat controts with reference to the financialstatements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controts, refer our separate report in Annexure
"A"" our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
company's internat financiaI controts over financial reporting.

(g) [n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the exptanations given to us, the
company has paid remuneration to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act.

(h) with respect to the other matters to be inctuded in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rute 11 o
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rutes, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
accord'ing to the exptanations given to us:

i" The Company has disctosed the impact of pending titigations as at 31 March 2024 onits financiat
position in its financiaI statements.
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The Company did not have any long-term contracts inctuding derivative contracts for which therewere any materiaI foreseeabte losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education andProtection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowtedge and betief, other than asdisctosed in the notes to the financiaI statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned ortnvested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) bythe company to or jn any other person or entity, inctuding foreign entity (,,lntermediaries,,), withthe understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, tiu, ,nu Intermediary shalt:

directty or indirectty lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any mannerwhatsoever ("Uttimate Beneficiaries") by or on behatf of the company; or

' provide any guarantee, security or the tike to or on behalf of the Uttimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowtedge and belief, other thanas disctosed in the notes to the fjnancial statements, no funds have been received by the companyfrom any person or entity, inctuding foreign entity ("Funding parties,,), with the understanding,whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company sha[[

' directty or indirectty, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any mannerwhatsoever ("Uttimate Beneficiaries") by or on behatf of the Funding party; or

' provide any guarantee, security or the tike from or on behatf of the Uttimate Beneficiaries
; and

(c) Based on our audit procedures that we have been considerect reasonabte and appropriate inthe circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to betieve that therepresentations provided by the management under sub-ctause (a) and (b) above contain anymateriaI misstatement.

(d) The Company has not declared any dividend during the year.

(e) Based on our examination, which inctuded test checks, the company has used accountlngsoftware's for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31 , zo24which has a feature of recording audit trait (edit tog) facitity and the same has operatedthroughout the year for at[ retevant transactions recorded in the softwares. Further, during thecourse of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trait feature beingtampered with.

As proviso to Rute 3(1) of the companies (Accounts) Rutes, 2014 isappticabte from Apri[ 1,2023' reporting under Rute 11(g) of the companies (Audit and Auditors) Rutes, 2014 onpreservatlon of audit traiI as per the statutory requirements for record retention is notappticabte for the fjnancial year ended March 31, ZOZ4.
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2) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) order, 2020 ("the order,,) issued by the cerirral Governmentof India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the,,Annexure B,,a statement on the mattersspecified in paragraphs 3 and 4 0f the order, to the extent appticabte.

For Maheshwari & Associates
Chartered Accountanrs
Firm's Registration No.: 3.1.100gE

Sateesh Patil
Partner
Membership No.: 22731j
UDIN: 2422731 1 BKCUSA5l 35

Place: Bengaturu
Date: 27th May 2024
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Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under'Report on other tegatand regulatory requirements'section of our
to the Members of sPML rNFRAsrRUcruRE LrMtrED of even date)

report

Report on the internal financial controls over financial reporting under clause (i) of sub - section 3 of section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (,,the Act")

We have audited the internatfinanciaI controts over financia[ reporting of sPML INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED (,,the
Company") asatMarch 31,2024, inconjunctionwithourauditof thefinancial statementsof theCompanyfor
the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in atl material respects, adequate internal financial controts with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controts were operating effectivety as at 31 March 2024, based
on the internal financial controts with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essentiaI components of internaI controI stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternat
FinanciaI Controts Over Financiat Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the
"Guidance Note").

Management's responsibility for internal financial controls

The board of directors of the Company is responsibte for estabtishing and maintaining internaI financial controts
based on the internaI controI over financiat reporting criteria estabtished by the Company considering the
essentiaI components of internat control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internat FinanciaI Controts over
FinanciaI Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('lCAl'). These responsibitities
inctude the design, imptementation and maintenance of adequate internaI financiaI controts that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to companys
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timety preparation of retiable financiaI information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' responsibi lity

Our responsibitity is to express an opinion on the internal financiaI controts over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internat
FinanciaI controts over FinanciaI Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of chartered
Accountants of India and the standards on audrting prescribed under sectio n 143 (10) of the companies Act, 201 3,
to the extent appticabte to an audit of internal financial controts and, both issued by the Institute of chartered
Accountants of India. Those standards and the guidance note require that we compty with ethicat requirements
and ptan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabte assurance about whether adequate internaI financial
controts over financial reporting were estabtished and maintained and if such controls operated effectivety in atI
rnateriaI respects"

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internat financial
controts system over financiaI reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internat financiaI controts
over financial reporting inctuded obtaining an understanding of internaI financial controts over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
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effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, inctuding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We betieve that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financiat control system over financial reporting.

Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting

A company's internaI financiat control over financiaI reporting is a process designed to provide reasonabte
assurance regarding the retiabitity of financiat reporting and the preparation of financiaI statements forexternar
purposes in accordance with generatly accepted accounting principtes. A company's internal financial controt
over financiat reporting inctudes those poticies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonabte detai[, accuratety and fairty reftect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financiaI statements in accordance with generatly accepted accounting principtes, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made onty in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and (iii) provide reasonabte assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that coutd have a materiaI effect on the financiat
statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent [imitations of internaI financiaI controts over financiat reporting, inctuding the possibility
of cottusion or improper management of override of controls, materiat misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Atso, projections of any evatuation of the interna[ financial controts over financiat
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internat financial controt over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of comptiance with the poticies or
procedures may deteriorate.

For Maheshwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 31 10088

Sateesh Patil
Partner
Membership No.227311
UDIN: 242273 1 1 BKCUSA5l 35

Place: Bengaturu
Date: 27th May 2024
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors' Report

Referred to in paragraph 2 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements,, Section of our
report to the members of spML tNFRAsrRUcruRE LlMtrED of even date.

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financiaI
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and exptanations given to us and the
books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that:

(i) In respect of company's Property, Ptant and Equipment and Intangibte Assets:

a) A) The Company has maintained proper records showing futt particutars, inctuding quantitative
details and situation of property, ptant and Equipment.

B) The Company has no intangibte assets. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i) (a) (B) of the Order
are not appticabte.

b) According to the information and exptanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has a regutar programme of physicat verification of its
Property, plant and equipment by which att Property, plant and equipment are verified in eacn
year' In accordance with this programme, Property, ptant and equipment were verified during the
year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physicat verification is reasonabte having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

c) The Company does not hotd any immovable properties. Accordingty, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(c)
of the Order are not appticabte.

d) According to the information and exptanations given to us and on the basis of our examjnation of
the records of the Company, the Company has not revatued its Property, plant and equipment
(inctuding Right-of-use assets) during the year.

e) According to the information and exptanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for hotding
any benami property under the Prohibition of benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rutes made
thereunder.

(ii) a) The Company does not hotd any Inventory. Accordingty, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order are
not appticabte.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records examined by us, the
Company has not been sanctioned any working capitat timits aggregating to more than five crores
by banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point of time of
the year. Hence reporting under paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order does not arise.

{
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(iii)a) The Company has granted toan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liabitity
Partnerships (LLPs) or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 1g9 of the
Act, and detaits for the same are as fo[[ows:

A' Detaits of Loans or Advances and Guarantees or Security granted to subsidiaries, joint ventures
ano assoclates

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Name of the
Concern

Nature of
Relationship

Nature
of
transactl
on

Aggregate
amount
during the FY

Balance
outstanding at
the balance
sheet

Attahabad Waste
Processing Company
Ltd.

Subsidiary LOan 13,054.95 22,828.26

Madurai Municipa
Waste Crocessing
Company Pvt. Ltd.

Subsidiary LOan 791.71 13,613.97

Mathura Nagar Waste
processing Co. Ltd

Subsidiary LOan 60.48 2,168.06

Sanmati Inf ra
developers Pvt Ltd

Subsidiary LOan 430.00 430.00

B. Loans or Advances and Guarantees or Security to other parties:
(Amount in Rs. '000)

Name of the concern Nature of
transaCtion

Aggregate amount
during the FY

Balance outstanding
at the balance sheet

Chahet Infrastructure
Limited LOan 406.15 59,287 .51

b)According to the information and exptanations given to us, and the records examined by us, the
investments made, guarantees provided, security and the terms and conditions of the grant of atI
loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are prejudicial to the company's
interest.

c) In our opinion and according to information and exptanation given to us, in respect of toans and
advances in the nature of loans, the company has stiputated the terms and conditions as on demand
and interest free. In case of loan given to Chahet Infrastructure Limited, the loan was given for
the period of 10 years with interest. Since, the company has not demanded the repayment of loans
from subsidiaries, the repayment of principat is regutar. In case of Chahet Infrastructure Limited,
the party has defautted the payment of interest and not been able to repay the principte amount
due to inadequate cash flows and financia[ position of the company.

d) According to the information and exptanations given to us, and the records examined by us,
since the company has not demanded the Ioans during the year, there are no overdue amounts.
Except the Ioan given to Chahet Infrastructure Limited amounting to Rs. 5,g2,g7.5'l thousands.
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e) According to the information and exptanations given to us, and the records examined by us,
there is no Ioan or advance in the nature of Ioan granted which has fatten due during the year, has
been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to
the same parties, Hence reporting under paragraph 3(iii)(e) of the Order does not arise.

f) According to the information and exptanations given to us, and the records examined by us, the
company has granted loans or advances in the nature of toans repayabte on demand:

Name of the Concern Nature of Relationship

Aggregate
amount of loan
balance
outstandlng
(Rs. in'000)

% thereafter of to
the total loans
granted

AttanaDad waste
Processing Company
Ltd.

Subsidiary 22828.26 23.22

Madurai MunicipaI
Waste Processing
Company Pvt. Ltd.

Subsidiary 13613.87 1 3.85

Mathura Nagar Waste
processing Co. Ltd

Subsidiary 2168.06 2.20

sanmati Inf ra
Devlopers Pvt Limited Subsidiary 430.00 0.44

Lnane( Inlrastructure
Limited LOan 59,287 .51 60.30

According to the information and exptanations given to us, and the records examined by us, in
respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of
the Companies Act have been comptied with. As the company is engaged in infrastructure business
and hence the exemption avaitabte in section 186 has been avaited for the loans given by the
company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingty, the clause
3(v) of the Order are not appticabte.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the CentraI Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act,2013 for
the services provided by it. Accordingty, ctause 3(vi) of the Order is not appticabte.

According to the information and exptanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

In our optnion, the Company has generatty been regutar in depositing undisputed statutory dues, inctuding
Goods and Services Tax ('GST'), Provident fund Employees'State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of
Customs' Cess and other materiatstatutory dues appticabte to it with the appropriate authorities.

(i v)

(v)

(vl )

(vlt I

al
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There were no undisputed amounts payabte in respect of Goods and Service Tax, Provident fund,
Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other material statutory dues were
in arrears as at 31 March 7024for a period of more than six months from the date they became payabte.

b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a), which have not been deposited on account of
disoute.

viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously
unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act.
1961 as income during the year.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of Ioans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to
any Iender during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wittfut defautter by any bank
or financiaI institution or government or government authority.

(c) According to the information and exptanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not obtained any term toans. Accordingty, ctause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not appticabte.

(d) According to the information and exptanations given to us and on an overalI examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds have been raised on short-term basis by
the Company. Accordingty, ctause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not appticabte.

(e) According to the information and exptanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financiat statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obtigations of its subsidiaries as defined under
the Companies Act, 2013. According[y, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not appticabte.

(f) According to the information and exptanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised Ioans during the year on the ptedge of securities hetd in
its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingty, ctause 3(ix)(f)of the Order
is not applicabte.

(x) a) In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the Company did not
raise any money by way of initial pubtic offer or further pubtic offer (inctuding debt instruments)
and hence, reporting under this paragraph 3(x)(a) of the order is not appticabte.

b) In our opinion and according to the informatron and exptanations given to us, the Company has not
made any preferentiaI attotment or private ptacement of shares or convertible debentures (futly,
partiatty or optionaIty convertibte) during the year. Accordingty, paragraph 3 (x) (b) of the Order
is not appticable.

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information
and exptanations given to us, considering the principtes of materiality outtined in Standards on

(ix)



MAHESHWARI & ASSOCIAT ES
Chartered Accountants

Auditing, we report that no fraud by the company or on the company has been noticed or reportedduring the course of the audir.

(b) According to the information and exptanations given to us, no report under sub-section (1zl ofsection 143 of the Companies Act, 201 3 has been fited by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under Rute 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rutes,20.l4 with the CentraI Government.

c) To the best of our knowtedge and according to the information and exptanations given to us, nowhistle'btower comptaints, have been received by the Company during the year.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the company is nota nidhi company. Accordingty, paragraph 3(xii) of the order is not appticabte.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the transactions withthe retated parties are in comptiance with sections 117 and 1gg of the Companies Act, 2013, wnereappticabte and detaits of related party transactions have been disctosed in the financiaI statements
as required by the appticabte lndian accounting standards.

(xiv) In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the internat auditprovisions are not appticabte to the company. Accordingty, paragraph 3(xiv) of the order rs notappticabte.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of therecords of the company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with its directorsor persons connected with its directors. Hence provisions of section 192 of Companies Act, 2013are not appticabte to the Companv.

(xvi) a)

b)

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bankof lndia Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under ctause 3(xvi)(a) and (b) of the order is not appticabte.

In our opinion, the company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financia[ or Housing Finance
activities without a vatid certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934:

In our opinion, the company is not a core investment company (as defined in the Core lnvestment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingty reporting under ctause 3(xvi)(c) of the
Order is not appticabte.

c)

d) In our opinion, the Group has no clc, Hence reporting under this clause 3(xvi)(d) wit[ not arise.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses during the financial year amounting to Rs. 26,651.70 thousandsbut not incurred cash loss in the immediatety preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. Accordingty,
ctause 3(xviii) of the Order is not apDticabte.



MAHESHWARI & ASSOCIAI-ES
Chartered Accountants

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and

payment of financiaI tiabitities, other information accompanying the financiaI statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence

supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to betieve that any

materjal uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capabte of
meeting its tiabitities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fatt due within a period of
one year from the batance sheet date" We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viabitity of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that alt liabitities fatting due within a

period of one year from the batance sheet date, witl get discharged by the Company as and when they
fatt due.

(xx) Since the provisions of Corporate Social Responsibitity (CSR) of Companies Act, 2013 are not appticable to
the company, the reporting under ctause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b)of the Order is not appticable for the year.

(xxi) The financiaI statements are not consotidated frnanciaI statements, accordingty, reporting under
paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order rs not applicabte.

For Maheshwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 311008E

Sateesh Patil
Partner
Membership No,: 227311

UDIN: 24227 31 1 BKCUSA5l 35

Place: Bengaturu

Date: 27th May 7024



SPML INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
CIN: U45201 KA2007PLCO4361 3

Registered Office: Golden Enclave, Corporate Block, Tower C, 3rd Floor, HAL Old Airport Road, Bengaluru - 560 01 7

Balance Sheet as at .J1st lilarch 2024

The notes are an integrat part of these financiat statement

Summary of 5ignificant accounting poticies L

29&30Contigencies & Commitments

As per our Report of even date.

For Maheshwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Patil
Partner
Membership No. 22731 1

Ptace: Bengaluru
Dale : 27 /0512024

For and on behalf of

Kost
Raj\h Kandoi
Direclor
DIN : 07\34686

Ptace: BengaIuru
Date: 27/05/2024

t rn Rs'000

Particulars Note No,
As at

31st March 2024
As at

31st March 2023

I

lAssErs
I 
Non-current assets

l(a) Property, ptant and equipment

i(b) Right to Use Assets

l(c) Financiat assets

l 
- Investments

l- Loans

l- Other non-current financial Assets

l(d) 
Deferred tax Assets(net)

I

I 
Current assets

l(a) Financiat assets

l- Trade Receivables
t-,
j 
- Lash and Lasn Lqulvatents

l- r-oans

j- Other Current Financiat Assets

l(b) Other current assets

l(c) 
Current Income tax Receivabte (Net)

I

I

I

lroTAL ASSETS

I

lEaurrY 
AND LtABtLtlEs

I 
ecujtv

| 
(a) Equrty 5nare caprtat

l(b) 
other Ecuitv

lTotal 
equitV

i

lLrABrLrTrES

I 
Non-current liabitities

l(a) Financiat tiabitities

l 
- Borrowings

l- Lease Liabitity

| 

(b) Provisions

I

I 
Current liabilities

| 
(a) Financiat tiabitities

l 
- Borrowings

l- Current maturities of tong term tiabitities
- Lease Liabitity
- Trade payabtes

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and
smatI enterprise
Total outstanding dues of other than micro
enterprise and sma[[ enterprise

- Other current financiaI tiabitities
(b) Other current tiabitities
(c) Provisions
(d) Current Income tax Receivabte (Net)

Total liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILTIES

J

6

7

30

8
q

10

11

12

30

13
't4

15

4

16

17

18

19

20
11

22

30

3,1 08.28
2,333.90

36.01

1 ,500.00
-7,408"49

5,352.1 5
1,981.36

1,01,055.68

1 ,500.00
40,1 19.87

1,52,009.02

3,838.34
1,095..94

3,1 84.01

2,114.21

11,043.34
5,3 30.04

18,481 .22

29,389 .26
24,657.57

50232 88,901.43

9 1 2.40.910.45

7,434.67
(90,8s5.88

7 ,434.67
1 ,51 ,660.32

3,421 .21 1.59.O94.99

47,738.99
807.8s
26.02

37,781 .54
2,281 .34

2.02

572.86 40.064.90

10,373.20
545.49

1 ,783.94

7,511 .18

2.02
24,434.67

0.05

10,697.89
1,298.35
1 ,852.50

13,469.26

>-5)
14,197.44

0.01

230.76

5544 41 .750.56

93.223.42 81.815"46
9,802.21 2,40,910.45

the board



SPML INFMSTRUCTURE I-IMITEE
CIN: U452OlKA200ZPLCO4361 3
Registered office: Golden Enclave, corporate Block, Tower c, 3rd Floor, HAL old Airport Road, Bengaluru - 560 017

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st rilarch 2024

For the year ended
31st March 2024

For the year ended
31st March 2023

Total Income

Expenses
ost of Material Consumed and Direct Expenses

Employee benefits expense
Finance Cost
Depreciation and Amortisation expenses
Other Expenses

Total Expenses

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax from continuing
operations
ExceptionaI ltems
Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations

Income tax for eartier year
Deferred tax
lncome Tax Expense

Profit for the year from Continuing Operations

Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)
other comprehensive income not to be recrassified to profit or loss in

-Measurement gains on defined benefit plans
Income Tax effect

Other Comprehensive Income for the year

otal Comprehensive Income for the year

share - Basic and Dituted na[ value Re.1 per share)

25,630.85
1,192"11

1,13.444.78
38,826.54

26.822.96 1 ,52.271 "32

47,716.04
1,299.63

832.67
2,833.16

1,67,757 "60

52,493.87
3,1 99.60
1,765.s3
2,164.01

12,635.26

2,20,438.10

('t,93,615.15) 80,023.05

1,93,615.15 80,023.05

12,496.63
(16.63 )

47.641.52

12,372.37

2,42,179.611

449.79
(113.20)

(2,42,516.2O)

tAmount rn Rs

v2,248.27

The notes are an integral part of tfrese financiit stfGfiEnt

Summary of Significant accounting poticies

As per our Report of even oare.

For Maheshwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg.No. 311008E

Sateesh Patil
Partner
Membership No.227311

Place: Bengaluru
Date :27 /05/2024

2

For and on behatf of the board

It r 1 \

$ 
^1. 

\u

Raj\h Kandoi
Direc\
DIN : 0234686

Ptace: Bengaturu
Date : 27 /05/2024

Director
DIN : 02671640



SPML INFMSTRUCTURE LIMITED
CIN: U45201 KA2007P1C04361 3

Registered Office: Golden Enclave, Corporate Block" Tower C, 3rd Floor, HAL Old Airport Road, Bengaluru - 560 O'17

Statement of Cash flows for the Vear ended 31st March 2024
in Rs

Particulars
For the year ended
31st March 2024

For the vear ended
31st March 2023

lCash flow from operating actrvities
j Profit before tax from Contrnuing Operatlons
I

lAdjustments to reconcile profrt before tax ro net cash flows:

i DeDreciatron and Amort rsatron fxpenses

N ProvrsronlLrabrtity no tonger requrred wr rtten back

i Finance Expenses

I Interest Income on toans

I Profit on sale of Investments/Assets
I Excess Provision vjritten back

I Interest Income on financjal assets

i lmpairment Cost on financial. Assets

I Provision for doubtfut debts

i Re-Measurement gains on defined benefit ptans
I

I

lWorking capital adjustments:
| (Decrease)/lncrease In Other Current Frnancial assets

| (Decrease)llncrease in Other non current Financiat assets

| (Decrease)llncrease in Trade Receivabte

| (Decrease)/lncrease In Other Current assers

| (Decrease )/lncrease in Loans & Advances

| (Decrease )/lncrease in Trade Payabtes

I lDec.ease )/lncrease in Non Current Financial tiabitities

| (Decrease )/lncrease in Other Current Financial tiabitities

| {D".r"ur" )/lncrease in Ol.her Current tiabitities

| (Decrease )/lncrease in Provrsrons
I

Income tax paid / (Refund)

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Property, Ptant and Equipment
Right to Use

Fair value change / Purchase of Invc'stments

Proceed from Sale of Investments
lnterest lncome on financial assets

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from Borrowings

Repayment of Borrowings

Capitat Reserves and Amatgmation adjustment
Proceeds from Share caoita(

Finance Expense (Net)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash eouivalents
Cash and cash equivatents at the beginnrng of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
(Refer Note no 8)

( 1 ,93,61 5.1 5)

?,833.16

1141.841
837.67

174.36)
1877.87)

1,34,752'.86

29,377 .42

1449.791

80,023.05

2,164.0',1

(0.23)
1 7Kq q?

(9.641

/.4,160.73).
(34,51 6.00)

3,643.96
107.50

75.72
(27,362.90)

26,205.25

(22,172.42)
24,657.57
't8,481.22

(5,816.24',
(1,542.051

(7.33)
9,484.37

24.05

49,093.17

99.28
(1,485.00)
73,288.12

14,177.52].
(18,481.221

(5,425.58)

4,133.84
(33.83 )

8,509.23
(68.s1 )

21 ,951.51
3,267.93

1 ,05,451 .98
6,285.34

'| 8,683.59 99.166.64

1,936.04

(33,733. 1 9)

74.36

1419.841
(4,942.38].

J2,807.-36

9.64
(31.722.79 7.454.78

17,696.51
(8,0s8.7s)

(0.00)

(832.67\

(92.,121._44',)

(30,392.57)

1.63
(1,765.53)

8,805.09 1.24.277.9'l

(4,234.11).

5,330.04
2,343.51
2,986.53

1,095.9{ 5,330.04

in Liability arrising from Financinq activities for the year enc ed 31st March 2024 Anrount in Rs

1st April 2O23 Proceeds Repayment
Fair Value
Chanqes

31st March 2024

Sorrowings - Non Current (Refer Note-'14) 37,781.54 735.44 37.046.10

Jorrowinqs - Current (Refer Note-16) 10,692.89 42,148.26 7,323.31 45.517.84

48,474.43 42,148.26 8,058.75 82,563.94

1st April 2022 Proceeds Repayment
Fair Value
C ha nEes

3 1 st March 2023

Borrowings - Non Current (Refer Note-14) 3 1,4s9.63 10,440.89 4,118.98 781

)rrowinqs - Current (Refer Note-16) 1 ,09,136.24 1,75,003.78 7,23 ,447 .12 10,692.89

|,40,595.86 1,35,444.67 2,27,566.10 48.474.43

As per our Report of even date

For Maheshwari e Associates
Chartered Accountants

Partner
Membership No. 22731 1

Ptace: Bengaluru

Date:27105/2024

For and on behalf of the board

NS

: '-'"--"-'"'

Rajesh \andoi
Director
DIN : 07434686

Ptace: Benga[uru
Date : 27 /05/2024



SPML INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

CIN: U4520 1 KAZOOTPLCO 43 6 1 3

Registered Office: Golden Enctave, Corporate Block, Tower C, 3rd Floor, HAL Otd Airport Road, Bengaluru - 560 O17

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 3 f st March 2O24

A) Equity Share Capital
(Amount in Rs'000)

Particulars
' Asat

31st March 2024
As at

31st March 2023
Equity shares of Re 'l each issued,
subscribed and fully paid

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period
Chanses in eouitv share caoitai durins the vear

7,434._67 7,434.67

3alance at the end of the reporting period 7,434.67 7,434.67

B) Other Equity

For the year ended 31st March 2024

ended 31st March 2023

The notes are an integrat part of these financial statement

As per our Report of even date.

For Maheshwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Sateesh Patil
Partner
Membership No. 22731 1

Ptace: Bengaturu

Date : 27 /05/2074

For and on behatf of the board

\

,ri

,1,'i
'.\(*.*
nul.\unooi
Director\
DIN : 07434686

Place: Bengaturu
Date : 27 /05/2024

or

Farticulars Retained earnings Security Premium
Capital Reserves
on Amalgamation

0ther
comprenenStve

income
Total

Balance as at 1st April 2023
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Adjustments

Total comprehensive income

(4,38,463.47),
(2,42,179.61)

(2,42,179.61\

5,88,762.66 433.44 977.69

(336.59)

(336" 59)

1.51,660.31
(2,47,179.61

(336.59

(2,42,516.20
Balance as at 31st t{arch 2O24 (6,80,643.09) 5,88,762.66 433.44 591 . 10 (90,85 5.

in Rs

Particu lars Retained earnings Securitv Premium
CapitaI Reserves

on Amalgamation

Other
comprehensive

income
Total

Balance as at 1st April 7O22
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income tor the year, net of tax
Adjustments

Total comorehensive income

(4,68,413.17)

67,650.68

(37,700.99)

29,949.70

5,88,767.66 65.06

368.38

368.38

871 .02

56.67

56.67

t lt;z.as-.ii
67,650.68

56.67
(37,332.61)

30,374.74
Balance as at 31st March 2023 (4,38,463.47' 5,88,762.66 433.44 927.69 1 51 32



SPML INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
|,lotes to financial statements as at 31st March 2024

'l Company background
SPML Infrastructure Ltd., being the vertical leader of SPML Infra Ltd. for the infrastructure projects as its 100% subsidiary, spearheads,
devetops & manages infrastructure projects tike Ports,SEZs, Integrated Industriat Townships,Urban Infrastructure,Automated Car
Parking Solutions, Tott Link roads among other infrastructure projects.

2 Significant accounting policies

2.O1 Basis of preparation and presentation
(a) Statement of compliance
These financiat statements are prepared in accordance with lndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act read with Rute 3 of the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rutes, 2015 and retevant amendment rutes issued there after"

Accounting poticies have been consistently apptied except where a newty issued accounting standard is initiatty adopted or a revision to
an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

(b) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a historicat cost convention and on an accrual basis, except for the fottowing materiat
'items that have been measured at fair vatue as required by retevant Ind AS:

i. Certain financiat assets and tiabitities measured at fair vatue (refer accountirrg policy on financial
instruments) and

ii. Defined benefit and other long-term employee benefits.

(c) Going Concern Concept and its impact on the company
it is observed by the management that the company has negative cash flows, negative net worth and uncertainty in receipt of money
from subsidiaries companies during the year. However though these unfavourabte situation indicate uncertainty of the financiat position
of the company, the management is confident of generating adequate cash flows from its exiting project and atso confident of getting
a new projects. Therefore in the opinion of the management, though there are negative indicators,the management has prepeareC the
financials on a going conceren basis based on the company current and future projpects.

(d) Use of estimates and judgement
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and asstrmptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, tiabitities, income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

(e) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and tiabitities in the balance sheet based on currentl non-current ctassification. An asset is treated as
current when it is:
- Expected to be reatised or intended to be sotd or consumed in normal operating cycle,
- Hetd primarity for the purpose of trading,
- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- Cash or cash equivatent untess restricted from being exchanged cr used to settte a tiabitity for at teast twetve months after the
reporting period.
At[ other assets are ctassified as non-current.
A tiabitity is current when:
- lt is expected to be settted in normal operating cycte,
- lt is hetd primarity for the purpose of trading,
- lt is due to be settled within twetve months after the reporting period, or
'There is no unconditionat right to defer the setttement of the tiabitity for at teast twetve months after the reporting period.
The Company classifies att other tiabitities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabitities are ctassified as non-current assets and liabitities.

The operating cycte is the time between the acquisition of assets for processirrg and their reatisation in cash and cash equivatents. Ttre
Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

2.02 Property, plant and equipment.
Under the previous GAAP (lndian GMP), property, ptant and equipmerrt were carried in the batance sheet at their carrying vatue being
the cost of acquisition or construction less accumutated deprecietiorr.

The cost of property, plant and equipment inctudes freight, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses relating to the acquisition and
instatlation of the respective assets. The present vatue of the expected cost for the decommissioning of art asset after its use is

inctuded in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. Borrowing costs directty attrihutabte to
acquisition or construction of those assets which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are
caoitatized.

Advance paid towards the acquisition of assets outstandine at each balance sheet are
'\ property, ptant and equipment not ready for their intended use before suclr date, are d

The cost r.rf
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SPML INFRASTRI,.'CTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2024

Depreciation methods, estimated usefuI lives and residual value:

The method of depreciation adopted and estimated usefut tife of fixed assets is enumerated below:

Asset Descriotion Method Useful life adopted

Useful tife as per
Schedute ll to the
Companies Act,

2013

Office equipments

Vehicle

End user devices, such as, desktops, laptops, etc.

5LM

SLM

SLM

5 years

8 years

3 years

5 years

8 years

3 years

The management has identified useful life of the assets (tangibte), based on the life as prescribed in Schedute ll to the Companies Act,
2013" Further the residual vatue is is estimated to be 5% of cost of asset.

2.03 lmpairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses at each ba[ance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset or a group of assets comprising a cash-

generating unit may be impaired. lf any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the

Company estimates the asset's recoverabte amount. An asset's recoverabte d.rrr-trnt is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's

(CGU) fair vatue tess costs of disposal and its vatue in use. Recoverabte ar,rount is determined for an irrdividuat asset, unless the asset

does not generate casl, inflows that are largety independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the cariying amount

of an asset or CGIJ exceeds its recoverabte amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverabte amo.rnt.

In assessing vatue in use, the estimated future cash ftows are discounted to their present vatue using a pre-tax

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time vatue of money and the risks specific to the asset. ln determining

fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. lf no such transactions can be identified, an

appropriate vatuation model is used. These catculations are corroborated by valuat'ion multiples, quoted share prices for pubticly traded

companies or other avaitable fair vatue indicators.
The Company bases its impairment calculation on detaited budgets and forecast calcutations, which are prepared separatety for each of

the CGUs to which the individual assets are altocated. These budgets and folecast catculations generatty cover a perioo of five years.

For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and apptied to proje.t future cash tlows after the fifth year. To estimate clrsh

ftow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Grorip extfapotates cash ftolv projections in the

budget using a steady or dectining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an incrcasing rate can be justifierJ. In any case, this growth

rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the Frocjucts, industries, or country or countries in which the entity

operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

For assets exctuding goodwitt, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an

indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. lf such indication exists, the Group estimates

the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed onty if there has been a change in the

assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so

that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that wo.rtd have been

determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment toss been recogniscd for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the

statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revatued dr]roilrrt, in which c:,se, the reversal is treated as a revaluation

increase.

2.04 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that rt is probable that the econor,ric benefits yritl flor; to the Company and thc revenue can be

retiabty measured, regarotess of when the payment is being nrade. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received

or receivable, taking into account contractuatly defined terms of payrnent, net of taxes oi' duties cotlected r,n be,hatf of the

government. Further, The Company uses significant judgments white determining the transaction price altocated to performance

obtigations.

Tt'e Company uses the percentage-of-comptetion method in accounting for its fixed-price contracts. Use of tne percentage-of-
completion method requires the Company to estimate the efforts or costs expended to date as a propoition of the t<.rtal efforts or costs

to be expended. Efforts or costs expended have been used to rneasure progress towaids comptetion as there is a direct retationship
between input and productivity.

Further, the Company uses significant judgnier,ts while determirring the transaction price attocated t.r performance obtigations using

the expected cost plus margin approach.

Provisions for estimated losses, if irny, cn rrncompleted contracts are recordr:d
based on the expected contract estimates at the reDortinq date.

in the period irr vvhich such losses br:-come probabte

Other Inccme - The specific recognition criteria de,:cribed below must atso be met before r+venuels

'1
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SPML INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2O24

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (ElR). EIR is the rate that exactty discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected tife of the financiat instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying
amount of the financiat asset or to the amortised cost of a financiat liabitity. When catcutating the effective interest rate, the group
estimates the expected cash ftows by considering at[ the contractual terms of the financiat instrument (for exampte, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses, Interest income is in;tuded in finance income in
the statement of profit and toss.

Dividends
Revenue is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is estabtished, which is generalty when shareholders approve
the dividend.

2,05 Leases

The company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a tease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of arr identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to controt the use of an identified asset, the company assesses whether: (1) the contract invotves the use of
an identified asset (2) the company has substantiatty att of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the tease
and (3) the company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROIJ") and a corresponding tease tiabitity for
atl lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twetve months or tess (short-term leases) and tow value
leases. For these short'term and low vatue teases, the company recognizes the lease payntents as an operating expense on a straight-
line basis over the terrn of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements inctudes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and
lease liabitities inctude"s these options when it is reasonably certain that they rdtt be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initialty recognized at cost, which comprises the initiat amount of the lease tiability adjusted fcr
any tease paylnents made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initiat direct costs less any lease incentives.
They are subsequently measured at cost tess accumutated de'preciation and impairment losses.

Right'of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-tine basis over the shorter of the tease term and usefuI
life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evatuated for recoverabitity whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverabte. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverabte amount
(i.e' the higher of the fair value less cost to selt and the vatue-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis untess the asset does
not generate cash ftows that are targety independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverabte amount is determined
for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset betongs.

The lease tiabitity is initiatty measured at imortized cost at the present vatue of the future lease payrnents. The lease payments arc,
discounted using the interest rate impticit in the lease or, if not readity deterntinabte, using the incremental borrowing rates in the
country of domicile of the leases. Lease liabitities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the retated right of use asset if
the group changes its assessment if whether it wi[[ exercise an extension or a termination option.
Lease tiabitity and ROU asset have been separatety presented in the Batance Sheet and tease payments have been ctassified as financinq
cash ftows.

2.06 Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financiat asset of one entity and a financiat tiabitity or equit/ instrument of
another entity.

:\
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SPML INFMSTRUCTURE LIMITED
f{otes to financial statements as at 31st March 2024

A Financial Assets
a) Classification

The company ctassifies its financial assets in the foltowing measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through

profit or loss), and

- those measured at amortised cost.

The ctassification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financiat assets and the contractuat terms of the cash ftows.

For assets measured at fair vatue, gains and tosses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For

investments in debt instruments, this witl depend on the business nrodel in which the investment is hetd, For investrnents in equity
instruments, this witt depend on whether the company has made an irrevocable etection at the time of initial. recognition to account for
the equity investment at fair vatue through other comprehensive income.

b) Initial recognition and measurement
At[ financiat assets are recognised initially at fair vatue ptus, in the case of financiat assets not recorded at fair value through profit or

[oss, transaction costs that are attributabte to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financiat assets that require

delivery of assets within a time frame estabtished by regutation or convention in the market ptace (regular way trades) are recognised

on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or se[[ the asset.

c) Subsequent measurement
Financi?l asset$ carried at amortised cost: A financial assets is measured at amortised cost if it is hetd within a business modet whose

objective is to hold asset in order to cottect contractuat cash ftows and the contractual cash terms of the financiat asset give rise on

specified dates to cash ftows that are solety payments of principat and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income

from these financial assets is accounted in profit or loss using the effective interest rate method. lmpairment losses, forex gain / loss

and gain / loss on derecognition of financial asset in this category is recognised in profit or toss.
Financial assets at fair vatue throuqh other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): A financiat asset is measured at FVTOCI, if it is lretd

withing a business model whose objective is achieved by both from cotlection of contractual cash ftows and setting the financiat assets,

where the assets' cash ftows represent sotely payments of principat and interest. Further equity instruments where the company nas

made an irrevocabte etection based on its business modet, to ctassify as instruments measured at FVTOCI, are measured subsequenttv

at fair vatue through other comprehensive income.

Debt instruments - Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income (OCl), except for the recognition

of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and [oss. When the
financiat asset is derecognised, the cumutative gain or loss previousty recognised in OCI is rectassified from equity to profit or loss and

recognised. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

Equity instruments - Movements in the carrying amount are taken to OCI and there is no subsequent reclassification of fair vatue gains

and losses to profit or [oss. Dividend from such investments are recognised in profit or [oss.

Financial assets at fair value throuqh Drofit or loss (FWPL): A financiat asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are
subsequentty fair valued through profit or loss. Atl gains and losses are recognised in profit or toss.

d) lmpairment of financial assets

The company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and
FVTOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodotogy apptied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
Note 43 details how the company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the company appties the simptified approach specified by Ind

expected lifetime tosses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

I
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SPML INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2024

e) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is primarity derecognised when:

" The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obtigation to pay the received cash

flows in full without materiat detay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangemen| and either (a) the company has transferred

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantiatty att the risks

and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained

substantially a[[ of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred contro[ of the asset, the company continues to recognise the

transferred asset to the extent of the company's continuing invotvement. In that case, the company atso recognises an associated

tiabitity. The transferred asset and the associated tiabitity are measured on a basis that reftects the rights and obtigations that the

company has retained.

B Financial liabilities
a) Classification

The company ctassifies its financial tiabitities in the foltowing measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequentty at fair vatue through profit or [oss, and

- those measured at amortised cost.

The ctassification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash ftows.

b) Initial recognition and measurement
The company recognises financiat tiabitities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument, Att financiat

tiabitities are recognized at fair vatue on initial recognition, Transaction costs that are directty attributabte to the issue of financial

liabitities' that are not at fair vatue through profit or toss, are reduced from the fair value on initiat recognition. Transaction costs that

are directly attributabte to the issue of financial tiabitities at fair vatue through profit or (oss are expensed in profit or toss.

c) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financiat tiabitities depends on their ctassification, as described betow:

Amortised cost: After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective interest rate (ElR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the tiabitities are derecognised as we[[ as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calcutated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the ElR, The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and toss.

Financial tiabitities at fair vatue throueh profit or loss: Financial tiabitities at fair value through profit or toss inctude financiat tiabitities
held for trading and financial liabitities designated upon initiat recognition as at fair value through profit or toss. Financiat tiabitities are
ctassified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category atso includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge retationships as
defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as hetd for trading untess they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Gains or tosses on tiabitities hetd for trading are recognised in the profit or [oss.

Financial tiabitities designated upon initial recognition at fair vatue through profit or loss are designated as such at the initiat date of
recognition, and onty if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabitities designated as FVTPL, fair vatue gains/ losses attributabte
to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCl. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss.
However, the company may transfer the cumutative gain or loss within equity. Att other changes in fair vatue of such tiabitity are
recognised in the statement of profit or [oss. The company has not designated any financial tiabitity as at fair vatue through profit and
toss.

"'" ',, :,/
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SPML INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2024

Derecognition of financial Liabilities
A financial liabitity is derecognised when the obtigation under the tiabitity is discharged or cancelted or expires. When an existing

financiat tiabitity is reptaced by another from the same tender on substantiatly different terms, or the terms of an existing tiabitity are

substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the origina[ tiabitity and the recognition of a

new tiabitity. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

C Financial guarantee contracts
The fair vatue of financial guarantees is determined as the present value of the difference in net cash flows between the contractual
payments under the debt instrument and the payments that woutd be required without the guarantee or the estimated amount that
woutd be payabte to a third party for assuming the obtigations.
(i) as Guarantor
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financiat tiabitity at the time the guarantee is issued. The tiabitity is initiatty
measured at fair value and subsequentty at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with Ind AS 109 and the amount initiatty
recognised tess cumutative amortisation, where appropriate.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payabtes of associates are provided for no compensation, the fair vatues are accountect
for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment.
(ii) as Beneficiary
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial asset at the time the guarantee is taken. The asset is initiatty measured at
fair vatue and subsequentty amortised over the guarantee period.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payabtes are provided by group companies for no compensation, the fair vatues are
accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of equity.

D Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and tiabitities are offset and the net amount is reported in the batance sheet where there is a legatty enforceable right

to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settte on a net basis or reatise the asset and settte the tiabitity

simuttaneously. The tegatty enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceabte in the normal course of

business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the comapany or the counterparty.

2.07 Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair vatue, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised

cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the

period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the estabtishment of loan facilities are recognised as

transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probabte that some or atl of the facitity witl be drawn down. In this case, the fee is

deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probabte that some or atl of the facitity witt be drawn

down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for tiquidity services and amortised over the period of the facitity to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the batance sheet when the obtigation specified in the contract is discharged, cancetled or expired. The

difference between the carrying amount of a financial tiabitity that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, inctuding any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other
gains/ (tosses).

Borrowings are ctassified as current tiabitities untess the company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at

least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or

before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the tiabitity becomes payabte on demand on the reporting date, the entity

does not ctassify the tiabitity as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financiat

statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

2.08 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directty attributabte to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarity takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitatised as part of the cost of the asset. Atl other borrowing costs are

expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost atso includes exchange differences to the extent
costs.

i .. I
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SPML INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 3 1 st March 2024
2,09 Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and tiabitities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation

authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantivety enacted, at the

reporting date in the countries where the company operates and generates taxabte income.

'Current income tax retating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive

income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in corretation to the undertying transaction either in OCI or directty in equity.

Management periodically evatuates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which appticabte tax regulations are

subject to interpretation and estabtishes provisions where appropriate.

Minimum alternate tax ('A,iAT') paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The company recognizes MAT

credit availabte as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company witt pay normal income tax during

the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is attowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the company

recognises MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Availabte in respect of Minimum

Alternative Tax under the Income tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown

as 'MAT Credit Entittement'. The company reviews the 'MAT credit entittement' asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset

to the extent the company does not have convincing evidence that it witt pay normat tax during the specified period. Deferred tax asset

is defined in Ind AS 12 to inctude the carry forward of unused tax credits. MAT Credits are in the form of unused tax credits that are

carried forward by the company for a specified period of time. Accordingly, MAT Credit Entittement is grouped with Deferred Tax Asset

(net) in the Balance Sheet.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the tiabitity method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and tiabitities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

'Deferred tax liabitities are recognised for atl taxabte temporary differences, except:

- when the deferred tax tiabitity arises from the initial recognition of goodwit[ or an asset or tiabitity in a transaction that is not a

business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxabte profit or [oss;

- in respect of taxabte temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures,

when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probabte that the temporary differences will

not reverse in the foreseeabte future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax

losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probabte that taxabte profit witl be avaitable against which the

deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax tosses can be utilised, except:

- when the deferred tax asset retating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initiat recognition of an asset or

tiabitity in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or [oss;

- in respect of deductibte temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint

ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised onty to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the

foreseeabte future and taxabte profit witt be avaitable against which the temporary differences can be utitised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probabte

that sufficient taxabte profit witt be avaitabte to attow atl or part of the deferred tax asset to be utitised. Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probabte that future taxable profits

witt attow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabitities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
tiabitity is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantivety enacted_ reporting date.

truCr\
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SPML INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements as at 3 1 st March 2024
Deferred tax retating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive

income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directty in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a tegatty enforceabte right exists to set off current tax assets against

current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entitv and the same taxation authoritv.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that date, are

recognised subsequentty'if new information about facts and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within

the measurement period reduce goodwitl retated to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained about facts and

circumstances existing at the acquisition date. lf the carrying amount of goodwitt is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are

recognised in OCI/ capital reserve depending on the principte explained for bargain purchase gains. Att other acquired tax benefits

reatised are recognised in profit or [oss.

2.10 Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (tegal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probabte

that an outftow of resources embodying economic benefits wi[[ be required to settte the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made

of the amount of the obtigation.

lf the effect of the time vatue of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reftects, when

appropriate, the risks specific to the tiabitity. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is

recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination

A contingent tiabitity recognised in a business combination is initiatty measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at the

higher of the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the requirements for provisions above or the amount initiatty

recognised [ess, when appropriate, cumutative amortisation recognised in accordance with the requirements for revenue recognition.

2.1 1 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of

three months or [ess, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a
non-cash nature and any deferrats or accruats of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and

financing activities of the company are segregated.

2.1 2 Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the parent
The Company recognises a tiabitity to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity hotders of the parent when the distribution is

authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is

authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directty in equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair vatue of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-measurement recognised directty

in equity.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the tiabitity and the carrying amount of the assets

distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and [oss.

2.13 Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit/ (toss) attributabte to owner's of the company for the year by the

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during reporting period.

The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings/ (toss) per share comprises the weighted average shares considered for

deriving basic earnings/ (toss) per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the

conversion of atI ditutive potentiaI equity shares.

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date have been issued at a later

date. In computing dituted earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are

share or increase loss per share are included.

reouces earnrngs per



sP/'AL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
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2.14 Segment reporting
Based on the "management approach" as defined in Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decision Maker evaluates the

company performance and altocates resources based on an anatysis of various performance indicators by business segments.

2.1 5 Recent Accounting pronouncements
Recent pronouncements Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rutes as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31,2024, MCA has not notified
any new standards or amendments to the existing standards appticabte to the
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3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Amount in Rs'000)

Particulars
Office

equipment
Furniture &

Fixture

End user
devices, such

as, desktoPs,
Iaotoos. etc.

Vehicles Total

GROSS BLOCK

AsatApril 1,2022 112.60 26.70 152.70 9.128.69 9.420.69

Additions
Disposals

Exchanqe Difference

434.98
21.38

1.002.55

434.98
21.38

1.002.55

AsatMarch 31,2023 112.60 26.70 566.30 10.131.24 10.836.84

Additions
Disposals

Exchanqe Difference

2,640.76 2,640.76

As at March 31,2024 112.60 26.70 s66.30 7.490.47 8.196.07

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

AsatApril 1,2022 37.O9 4.31 31.92 3.212.06 3.285.38

Depreciation Charge for the Year
lmpairment
Disposats
Exchanse Difference

4Q.23 2.54 77.70 1,082._51

996.32

1,202._99

996.32

As at March 31,2023 77.32 6.8s 109.62 5.290.89 5-484.69

Charge for the Year
lmpairment
Disposals

Exchanqe Difference

2Q.67 2.54 158 41 1,0Q4._09

1,582.60

1 ,1 85.70

1,582.60

AsatMarch 31,2024 98.00 9.39 268.03 4.712.38 5.087.79

NET BLOCK

As at March 31,2023 35.28 19.85 456.68 4,840.34 5,352.1 5

As at March 31,2024 14.60 17.3"1 298.27 2.778.10 3.108.28



SPML INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2024

4 RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

The Company has leased immovabte property for a period of 36 months entering into the lease arrangement' Accordingty

tne company nas accounted for a Right To Use (ROU) asset and Lease Liabitity as per requirement of Ind AS 116.

The weighted average incrementat borrowing rate applied to tease tiabilities is 9% (PY' Nit)

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended 3lst March 2024 and 31st

March 2023:

in'000)of ROU asset - Lease lmmovable

Particulars
As at

31st March 2024
As at

31st March 2023

lalance at the beginning
\dditions
)eletions
)eDreciation

3,98r.36

(1 ,647 .46

4,942.38

(96't.071

lalance at the end of the year 2,333.90 3,981.36

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at 31st March ?.024 and 31st March 2023:

in 000)

Particulars
As at

31st March 2024
As at

31st March 2023

:urrent lease tiabitities

'lon-current lease liabilities
1,783.94

807.85

1,852.50
2,281.34

fotal 2,591.79 4,133.44

The following ls the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31 st March 2Q24 and 3l st March 2023:

(Amount in

Particulars
As at

31st March 2024
As at

31st March 2023

Balance at the beginning
Additions
Detetions
Finance cost accrued during the Period
Pavment of lease tiabilities

4,133.-84

I10.45
11.852.501

c,s+i.:a

241.46
(1,050.001

Balance at the end 2,591.79 4.1 33.84

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities

31st March 2023 on an undiscounted basis:
(Amount in'000)

Asat I AsatParticulars I rt* r't".J zozl I rtst March 2023

tha^ one year I t,za:'x I 1,852.50

to five years | 807.85 I 2'?81.34

than five years
591.79 | 4,133.84

The company does not face a significant tiquidity risk with regard to its tease tiabitities as the current assets are

sufficient to meet the obtigations related to tease tiabitities as and when they fa[[ due.

The aggregate depreciation on ROU assets has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the

Statement of Profit and Loss.

The details of Short-term Lease entred by the Company during the year are as follows:

The Company has entered into leases for office premises, that are renewabte on a periodic basis and are canceltable by

giving the notice from one month. There are escautation ctause in the agreement and there are no restrictions imposed in

the lease arrangements.

The Company has incurred Rs. Nit (31 March 2023: Rs. 1313.00) during the year towards minimum lease payment' The

company is avaiting the excemption avaitabte for short-term and low vatue tease under IND A5 1 16.

as at 31st March ?024 and



SPML INFMSTRUCTURE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements as at 3 1 st March 2024

FINANCIAL A5SET5

5 INVESTA4ENTSINVESTA4ENTS in Rs'000

Partlculars
As at

31st March 2024
As at

3lst March 2023

lvalued at amortised c6t unless stated otherwise

l(A) Investment In Unquoted Equity Shares (Fully pald up)

lSubsidiary

| 6,16,41,000(March31,20?2i1,'12,51,000l-Equity Sharesof Re'l/-Each,futtypaidupof
I Attahabad Waste Processing Co Limtied'

| 5,53,34,000 (March 31, 2022: 53,34,000) Equity Shares of Re 1 /- Each, futty paid up of

I Mathura Nagar Waste Processing Co Limtied'
I

| 1,69,48,990 (March 31, 20222 43,55,400 ) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each, futty paid up of

I Madurai Municipat Waste Processing Co Private Limtied

I 15,00,000 (March 31, 2022 : 15,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/'Each, futty paid up of

I Sanamti Infradevtopers Private Limited -

lAssiates
| 36,000 (March 31, 2022: 36,000) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each, futty paid up of SPMLIL -

AMRUTHA Contructions Private Limited

Fair value through the statement of other comprehensive income
Others

20,004 (March 31,7022:.70,0041 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each, futty paid up of Chahet

Infrastructure Limited (lncludes the beneficiat interest in 4 shares) "

Less: Provision for impairement of financiaI assets"

Valued at Falr value through the statement of profit and loss

(B) Investment In Redeemable Preference Shares (Fully Paid up)
Subsidiary

91,00,000 (March 31, 2022: 91,00,000) preference Shares of Re 1/- Each, futty paid up of
Mathura Nagar Waste Processing Company Limtied
9,08,38,000 (March 31, 2027i 7,18,48,0001 Preference Shares of Re 1/- Each, fulty paid

up of Attahabad Waste Processing Company Limtied
1,78,51,000 (March 31, 2022: 1,78,51,000) Preference Shares of Re 1/- Each, futty paid

up of Madurai MunicipaI Waste Processing Company Private Limited

Less: Provision for impairement of financiaI assets"

s0,390.00

50,000.00

11,745.50

1,000.00

36.00

50,390.00

50,000.00

1 1,245.50

1,000.00

36.00

'1,12,67',t.50

1,12,635.49
1,12,671.50

1 1.61 5.82

36.O1 1 .01,0s5.68

9,1 00.00

89,360.12

42,407.54

9,100.00

70,370.17

4?,407.54

1,40,867.66
1.40.867.66

1,21,877.66

1,21,877 .66

Total 36.O1 t -o1 -055,6E

lNon-Current | 36.01 | 1,01,055.68 
|

lTorat 
Investments I lo.ot 1 

1,01,055.68 
|

tttl
lAggregate vatue of unquoted investments | 2,53,539.16 | 2,34,549.16 

|

lAggregate amount of impairment in vatue of investments | 2,53,503.15 | 1,33,493.48 |

' These investments made before the period of IND AS adption by the company are carried at deemed cost at the transition date based on

the fair vatue and hence the corresponding value shown against each of the investments are Nit. The investmenet made subsequentty in

subsidiary companies are recoreded at cost.

'" The company has made an investment in the equity and preference shares of Mathuranagar Waste Processing Company Limited,

Attahabad Waste Processing Company Limited and Madurai Municipat Waste Processing Company Private Limited, The respective

companies are in the business of (i) Cottection, Segregation, and Processing of Sotid Waste (ii) to Dispose of Municipat Dispose (iii)
Renovates, Operate, Maintain Garbage Dumping Centers (iv) Land Fitting of Remnants. The project has been commissioned by the
companies but the necessary obtigations committed by the respective Nagar Nigams as per the Concession agreement has not been

futtfitted. Therefore during the 2015-16 the companies have fited for the arbitration petition and the suits at the civit courts for the
litigations. Based on the assesment of current status of arbitration/Court proceedings and [ega[ opinion obtained from the tawyer, the

management have made the provision for impairement of these investments.

LOANS
(Amount in Rs'000)

| ' | 31st March 2024 | 3tst l arch 2023 
|

lLoans and advances others | 59,287.51 | 58,881.36 
|

I Less: Provision for imDairement of toan | 59,287.5'l | 58,881.36 |I mttlt

Loans and receivabtes are non-derivative financiat assets whjch generate a fixed or variabte interest income for the GrouP. The carrying

vatue may be affected by changes in the credit risk of the counterparties.

orHER N.N'.URRENT FlNANclaL AssETs 
(Amount in Rs'000)

Particulars
As at

31st l{arch 2024
As at

31st March 2023

Kts
Unsecured considered good unless stated

Security deposit receivable 1,500.00 1,500.6
/r

Total 1.500.00 1.501

o



SPML INFRASTRUCTURE I.iMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 31rt l arch 2024

8 TRADE RECEIVABLEs

A5 at
31st ,larch 2023

Trade rtreivabtes agelng schedute for the year ended as on l'{arch l'1, 2024 and tiarch 31, 2023:

tarticulaF outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment

Not Due 6 Months 6 months - 1 I -2 years 2-3 Years ,ilore than 3

Years
TOTAL

JndisDuted Trade receivabtes - considered c@d 2.024.J4 1,El4.q) I 838 :t4
I 1t) 57 96 77 1.8r4_m I t.u4J. J4

.onsrdered omd

isDuted Trade receivables - credit imDaired

fotal Trade Receivables 2.O24.34 1 .8 1 4.00 I 838
9.137.57 96.77 't.814.OO

There is an amount of Rs. 1912.39 (PY ' R!. 96.77

Trade rKeivables, except rtreivables on account of Ctaims of awareded in arbitration in favour of company are non interest bearing and are generatty on terms of l0 - 90 days.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

in Rs

Particulars
As at

3lst rr{arch 2024
As at

lst l arch 2O2l
Cash and cash equivalents
Batances with banks:

On current accounts
On Fixed Deposit accounts having matunty less than 3

months

162.O1

445.00

488.91

4,871.10

458.94
Total 1 095 S4 5 110 04

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates bared on daity bank deposit rates. Short'term deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Company, and earn interest at the respective short'term deposit rates.

LOANS

L@ns and rtreivabtes are non-denvative financial assets which generate a fixed or variable interest
income for the Group. lhe carrying vatw may be afftrted by changes in the credit risk of the
counterpartleS.

'Loan and advances due from companres in which Company5 director(s) is / are director(s) / member(s)

" The company has given loans to subsidiary companies for their operationat commitment and legal
prtressdings, Bard on the asssment of current status of arbitration/Court praeedings and legal
opinion obtained from the lawyer, the management have made the provision for impalrement of ther
toans, ai the subsidiary companies are not in position to repay these toans.

1rt.i.
f

'!-.-"-"/. 
..i'.l

t"n-^.-*-r''

t
i
I

in Rs

Particulars
AS at

3 1st l'{arch 2024
As at

l'lrt ltarch 2023

JnFcured considered g@d untess stated
L@ns to related party '
I

19,0,{o.1 9 43,184.37
14 701 15

Total 't 8.481

Waste I'lanagement Prcessing Co Ltd
I'tJnicipat Waste Prcessing Co Pvt Ltd
Nagar Waste Pro. Co. Ltd

Sanmati Infradevetopers Pvt Ltd

9,773.41
12,822.16
2,107.58

18,481.22



sPML INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements as at Jlst liarch 2024

X1 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

'During the Prior year the company acquired "Jamshedpur Waste Prcessing Company Private Limited
through merger order dated 31st January 2018. The transferor cqmpany was in the business of (t)

Cotl{tion, Segregation, aod Prcessing of Sotid waste (ii) to Dispo5e of lrtunicipal DispoF (iii) Renovates,

operate, l'laintain Garbage Dumping centers (iv) Land Fitting of Remnants, The project ha5 beer
dispenFd by the company on account of non fulfilment of necessary obtigations committed by the
Jamshedpur Notified Area Commr'tte as per the concession agreement. Therefore during 2015-16 the
transferor company have fited for the arbitration petition and accordingty arbitration awareded in favour
of company. Prerently the company ha5 fited the execution petition with the appropriate court and

awaiting for the decission from them. Based on the assesment of current status of arbitration/Court
pr€eedings and tegat opinion obtained from the tawyer, the management have made the provision for
rmDeirement of thes investments,

Break up of financral assets

12 OTHERCURRENTASSETS

ln xs

Particuia6
A5 at

31st March 2024
A5 at

31st li4arch 2023

UnFcured considered g@d unless stated
Interest accrwd on Fixed Deposit

Advance Daid to staff
lnsurance ctaim recervable
Balance with Government authorities

Arbitration Ctaims receivable '

-ess : Provision for doubtful debts

3.68
1 3.50

3,166.83
29.377.42

1'1.84

29.377.42

32,561.43
29,377.42

29,389.26

Tatal 3.1 84.0 1 29,389.26

{Amount in Rs 0O0)

Particulars
As at

31st l,tarch 2024
A5 at

3'lst f arch 2023

lnvestments
LOans

Other non-current financial As*ts
Irade Receivables

Cash and cash equivatents
Other Current Financial Assts

16.01

1,500.00
1,838.14

1,095.94
1,184.01

1,01,055.68
18,481.22

1,5m.00
11,04J.34

5,330.04
29,389.26

fobl finahcial 9.65,1.30 1.66.799.54

tn

Particulars
As at

3lst r{arch 2024
As at

3'lst March 2023

Jnsecured considered g@d unless stated
Unbilled Revenue

Advance to Vendors

Prepaid Expenses

8,439.01
15,384.46

834.08

Total 24,657



SPMI- INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2024

13 SHARE CAPITAI-
(Amount in Rs'000)

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
Equity Shares: The company has one class of equity shares having paid-up vatue of Re.1 per share. Each sharehotder is etigibte for one vote
per share hetd. The company dectares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to
the approval of the sharehotders in the ensuing Annuat General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of tiquidation, the
equity sharehotders are etigibte to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of att preferential amounts. The
distribution witt be in proportion to the number of Equity Shares hetd be the Shareholder.

(c) Shares held by holding

Inctuding 042 equity shares
The 74,32,000 shares(PY 74,32,000 Shares) hetd by hotding company (SPML Infra Limited) has been ptedged in favour of the SB|CAP

Trustee/54A Lenders for securing the due repayment of the Debts as restructure under the SPML S4A Scheme as approved by the Overseeing
Committee (Governed under RBI) with the super majority of the lenders bank.

(d) Details of shares held

(e) The Company has not attotted any futty paid up equity shares by way of bonus shares nor has bought back any class of equity shares
during the period of five years immediatety preceding the batance sheet date nor has issued shares for consideration other than casn.

(f) There are no unpaid catts from director & officers of the company

(g) There are no buy back of shares during the year by the company.

(h) Disctosure of

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Number Amount (Rs) Number Amount (Rs)

Equity shares of Re.1 /- each
Preference Equity shares of Rs.1 /- each

lssued. Subscribed & Paid-up
Equity shares of Re. 1 /- each, futty paid

5,50,00,000
4 to qo ono

55,000.00
43,050.00

5,50,00,000
4,30,50,000

55,000.00

4l,050.00
9.80.50.000 98,050.00 9,80, s0,000 98,050.00

74,34,667 7.434.67 74,34,667 7,434.67

Total 74.34.667 7.434.67 74,34,667.00 7,434.67

(a) Reconciliation of number of snares

in Rs

Pa rticulars
Equity Shares Equity Shares

As at 31st March 2024 As at llst March ZOZ

Number Rs Number Rs
jhares outstanding at the begrnnlng of the year 74,34,667 7,434.67 74,33,042 7,433.04
;hares lssued durinq the year r.olf 1.61
ihares bought back during the year

shares outstandine at the end of the vear 74,34,667 7,434.67 74,34,667 7,434.67

comPany holdrng companies
As at 31st March 2024 As at Jlst March ZOZ3

Name of Shareholder and Relationship with the company No. of Shares II Amountneto I

No. of Shares
held

Amount

Equity Shares
SPML Infra Limited' 74,34,1391 7,434.14ll 74,34,139l| t,qt+.tq

ial interest

sharehotders holcling more than 5% of the shares in the

Name of Shareholder
As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023

No' of shares 
I x or notatns

No, of Shares
held

% of Holding

:quity Shares
;PML Infra Limited 74,34,139 | 99.99% 74,34,139 | 99.99%
' Inctuding beneficial interst in 1042 equity shares

of

Name of Promoters
As at 31st Ma(ch 2024 As at 31st llarch 2023

No. of shares %of total
shares

% Change No. of shares 96of total % Change

;PML lnfra Limited' 74,34,139 99.99% 0.00% 74,34,139 99.99t 0.00%
' Including beneficial interst in 1042 equity shares

E'{
6\\o W9



SPML INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

t'lotes to financlal statements as at 31st fi{arch 2024

14 OTHER EqUITY
in Rs

Partlculars
As at

31st l arch 2024

As at
3lst rrtarch 2023

Capital Reserve on Amalgmation
Opening balance
(+) Additions

{') Deductions
Total

Security Premium
Opening batance
(+) Additions
(-) Deductions

Totat

Retained Earnings
Opening batance
Adjustment on Amatgmation
(+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the current year

Totat

433.44 65.06
368.38

43J.44 433.44

5,88,762.66 5,88,762.66

5,88,762.66 5.88.762.66

14,37,535.-78

t2.42.516.70

(4,67,542.15).
(37,700.99),

67,707.36
(6-8O.05 t .98 (4,37,535.781

Total - Other equity -90.85 5.88 't,5't ,660.32

Nature and purpose of other reserves:

Capital Reserves on Amalgmation: The excess of liabitities over the assets on amatgamation has been accounted

as capitat reseryes.

Securities premium reserve: Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium received on issue of

shares by the Company. The reserue can be utilised in accordance with the provision of sec 52(2) of Companies

Act, 201 3.

Retained Earnings: Retained Earnings comprise of the company's accumutated undistributed earnings / (tosses).

This Reserue represents the cumutative profits of the Company and effects of remeasurement of defined benefit

obtigations. This Reserue can be utitised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013-

from Follows:

.. Loan received from retated parites are repayabte after 10 years from 0'1.12.2018 during the year interest has not been charged.

PROVISIONS
Amount in Rs

Particulars
As at

31st March 2024

As at
31st lv{arch 2023

trovision for employee benefits (Refer note 40)

Gratuity 26.02 2.02

Total 26.02 2.O2

. Loan received from retated party repayabte on demand and interest at the rate of 9% pa (PY ' @ 9% pa)

" Loan received from retated parites are repayable on demand and interest free.

CURRENT,\,1ATURlTlES OF LONG TER il LlABlLlTlEst,
i;,

\

BORROWINGS
(Amount in Rs

Particulars
As at

31st l arch 2024

As at
31st l{arch 2023

Secured
From Banks'
Less: Disctosed under current maturities of long term borrowings
(Refer note'18)

Unsecured
From related parties "

545.49

545.49

1,754.34

1,298.35

47,738.99

455.99

37,325.55

Total 47.73E.99 37,781.54

Partlculars of loan and Security given
The Loan availed lnterest Rate EMI'

No of

lDFC Bank - Secured bv - Hvoothecation of Vehicte 5,200.00 8.75% '108.20 36

BORROWINGS
in Rs

Particulars
As at

31st l{arch 2024

As at
31st l{arch 2023

Unsecured
From other corporates who are related parties

Repayabte on Demand with interest '
Repayabte on Demand without interest "

7,437.30
2,935.90 10,692.89

Total 1 0.373.20 10,692.89

in Rs

Particulars
As at

31st l6arch 2024

As at
31st March 2023

-urrent Maturities of loan obligation 545.45 1,298.35

Total 545.49 1.298.35

18



in Rs

Particulars
As at

31st March 2024

As at
31st March 20?3

Trade Payables :

Totat outstanding dues of micro and smatl enterprises '
Total outstanding dus of otier than micro and small enterprises 7,51 1.1 8 x3,469.26

Total 7.511.18 13,469.26

sPML INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITEO

Note5 to financial 5tatement5 as at 31st March 2024

I9 TRADE PAYABLES

'There are no reported Micro, smalt and Medjum Enterprises as defined in the Micro, SmalL and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 to whom the Company owes dues.

Terms and conditions of the above financial tiabitities;
- Trade payabtes are non-interest bearing and are normalty settted on 60'day terms
- Other payabtes are non'intere5t bearing and haye an average term gf six months
- Interest payable is normatty settled quarterty throughout the financiat year
- For terms and conditions with related parties, refer to Note 41

For explanations on the Company's credit risk management processes, refer to Note .44

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
in Rs

Particulars
As at

31st March 2024

As at
3'lst March 2023

nterest accrued but not due 2.O2 9.35

Total 2.O2 ,,Ja

21 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

22 PROVtStONS

Particulars As at 3'lst March 2023 and As at 31st March 2024
oilt(tin.lino for followino beriods from due date of oavment

Not Due Less than 1 year 1 -2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total

i) MSME

rii) Others 7 141.72 269.47 7.511.1

13.469.26 3.469.76

liv) Disouted Dues -Othe6

Total Trade Pavable 7.241.72 269.47 7.511 .14
13.469.26 13.469.26

Break uD of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
in Rs

Particulars
As at

3'lst March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Borrowings
Trade Payabtes
Othpr .rrrrent finan.ial liahilitv

58,1 12.19
7,51 1 .1 8

547.51

48,474.43
13,469.76

'|.307.70

Total 66.'170.88 63,25'1.40

Amount in Rs

Particulars
As at

31st March 2024
As at

3'lst March 2023

;ataries and other emptoyee benefit payabte

\dvance rseived
itatutory Dues payabte (including GsT and TDS)

872.85
23,500.00

61.87

949.59
8,560.81
4,6a7 .04

Total 24.434.6 14.197.44



SPML INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ending 31st March 2024

23 REVENUE FROM OPERATION

in Rs

Particulars
For the year ended

31st March 2024
For the year ended

31st lr{arch 2023

Sale of Services
-Consultancy Charges
-Contract Revenue

Other Operating Revenue
-lnsurance Ctaim

19,748.78
5,827.09

554.98

59,971.43
53,473.35

Total 25.630.85 1 .13.444.78

OTHER INCOME
Amount in Rs

Particulars
For the year ended

31st March 2024
For the year ended

31st r{arch 2023

Liabitity no tonger required written back
lnterest on Fixed Deposit Received

Profit on sale of Fixed Assets

Profit on sale of lnvestement
Excess Provision Written Back
nterest on lncome Tax Refund

141.U
74.36

877._87

98.O4

0.23
9.64

4,160.73

34,516.00

139.94

Total |,192.11 38,826.54

25 CO5T OF MATERIAL CONSUMED AND DIRECT EXPENSES

26 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPEN5E

28 DEPRECIATION & AM,T ORTISATION EXPENSES

in Rs

Particulars
For the year ended

31st March 2024
For the year ended

31st lr{arch 2023

Contract Service Direct Expenses:
Purchases of Consumabtes

Subcontractor Expenses

Site Office Exoenses

24,854.05
20,701.16

2.1 60.83

28,355.64
73,689.74

448.49

Total 47,716.04 57.493.87

in Rs

Particulars
For the year ended

31st March 2024
For the year ended

31st March 2023

Sataries & Wages

E5l Contribution
Bonus Paid

Employees Gratuity (Refer Note No 39)

5taff Medicat Insurance
Staff Wetfare expenses

1,051 .94
72.88
31.71
26.17

1 65.93

2,704.39

3.45
22.17
t.tL

146.34

306.03

Total 1.298.63 3, 1 89.60

FINANCE COSTS
in Rs'000

Particulars
For the year ended

31st March 2024
For the year ended

31st lvlarch 2023

nterest on unsecurred [oan

nterest on Lease Assets

nterest on Car Loan

nterest on detaved oavment of statutory dues

240.71
310.45
82.18

1 99.33

565.31

241.46
160.44
798.37

Total 832.67 1,765.53

(Amount in Rs

Particu lars
For the year ended

31st March 2024
For the year ended

31st March 2023

)epreciation on Tangible assets

)epreciation on Lease Assets

1,185.70
1,647.46

1,702.99

961.02

Total 2.833.1 6 2.164.O1

laSlr



SPML INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ending 31st March 2024

29 OTHER EXPENSES

' Exclusive of GST

INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)

The following table provides the details of income tax assets and tiabitities as at 31 March 2024:

ii) The gross movement in the currebt tax asset/ ( Liabitity) for the years ended 31 March 2024 is as follows:

30

i)

For the year ended
31st March 2024

For the year ended
31st March 2023

I 29.90
't6t.80

1 65.50
223.50

1,495.12
2,715.00

157.93
1 56.1 0

1,31 3.00
51 8.70

1 ,217.40
43.22

176.78

3,643.96
107.50

56.67
853.1 8

expenses (Refer Note 4)

& Maintenance - office
& Maintenance - Vehicle

Traveting & Conveyance

lmpairment Cost on financial Assets

Provision for doubtfut debts
Rates & Taxes

11.20

1 00.00
85.20

716.29

1,579.55
25.00

95.83
91 .18

114.87

449.95

326.57

1,34,752.86
29,377.42

178.69
352.99

to Auditors in Rs

Particulars
For the year ended

31st March 2024
For the year ended

31st March 2023

qs Auditors'
- Audit fees
- For Tax Audit fees

1 00.00 100.00
s0.00

Total 1 00.00 1 50.00

in Rs

Particulars
As at

3 1 st March 2024
As at

31st March 2023

lncome Tax Assets

Current Income Tax Liabitities
Net Balance

2,415.01 12,7s5.87
12,486.63

2,415.O1 (zto.76)

Particu lars
For the year ended
31st March 2024

For the year ended
31st March 2023

Net current income tax asset at the beginning
lncome Tax paid(Net of Refund)
Current Income tax expense

Income Tax paid for eartier year

Income tax on other comprehensive income

Net current income tax asset at the end

(230.76

3,568J7

922.95

5,953.91

6,28s.33
12,486.63

(1 6.63)

2-4"t5.O1 (230.76)



SPML INFMSTRUCTURE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ending 31st March 2024

iii) The tax expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2024 is as follows:

iv) A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate

to the profit before income taxes is as below:
tn

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2024
As at

31st March, 2023

Profit before income tax
Effect of expenses not atlowed for tax purposes

Effect of expense allowed for tax purposes

Effects of income not considered for tax purposes

Carried Forward Loss

Adjusted Taxabte profit
Appticabte income tax rate
Computed expected tax expense
Income tax for eartier year

Deferred tax charged to profit and loss

lncome tax expense charges to the statement of Profit and loss

(1 ,93,61 s.1 s)
'1,65,752.89

(s44.83)
(877..87\

(29,284.96)
75.17%

922.95

47,641.5L

48,564.47

53,836.67
(3,757.66)

(96s.el )

49,613.11
25.17%

17,486.63
-l 6.63
-97.67

12,372.38

v) DEFFERED TAX

. The company has not recognised the deferred tax asset arising on timing differace on account of tax loss pertaining

to capitat Asset amounting to Rs. 29,311.10 (PY - Rs. 79,311.10), considering the concept of prudence and vertual

certainity of profits as on date.
.. Considering the concept of prudence and uncertainity of timing difference in value of investment in equity Shares

and preference share of Subsidiary, Associates & Others, the deferred tax asset amounting to Rs. 1,23,346.07 (PY '

80,037.72) has not been recognised.

j

Amount in Rs

Particu lars
As at

31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Deferred income tax liability
Timing difference on tangibte and intangible assets depreciation and

amortisation
Carried Forward Loss

Transfer
Deferred income tax asset'
Timing difference on lease assets and tease liabilites
Timing difference on investments in securities"
Provision for Gratuity

Total deferred tax liabilities/ (assets) (net)

7 ,479.96

1 09.52
7,370.-44

71.47
64.91

6.56

7,005.53

65.50

6,940.03

47,125.35
38.38

47,086.46

0.51

-7.408.49 40,119.82
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31 CONTINGENTLIABILITIES
(Amount in Rs'000

Particulars
As at

31st March 2024
As at

31st March 2023

Ctaims against Companies not acknowledged as debt
Claims towards tiquidated damages not acknowledged as debts by

the Company Against the above, debts of the tike amounts ar€

withhetd by the customers. However, the Company expects nc

material tiabitity to accrue on account of these ctaims

Disputed Statutory Demands

Performance bank guarantees given to various authorities

Capital and Other Commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for: as at 31st March 2024' Rs. Nit (PY

Rs. 25,488.00)

Earning Per Share
Basic EPS amounts are calcutated by dividing the profit for the year attributabte to equity hotders of the parent by the weighted

average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Dituted EPS amounts are catculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent (after adjusting for interest on

the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year ptus the weighted

average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of att the ditutive potentiat Equity shares into Equity shares.

The followine reftects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS comoutations:
(Amount in Rs'000)

Particulars
For the year ended

3'tst March 2024
For the year ended

31st March 2023

',let orofit availabte for Equitv Sharehotders (2.42,179.61 67,650.68
#eiehted Averaqe number of Equity shares 74,34,66i 74.34.66i
lasic and Dituted Earninqs Per Share (32.57 9. 10

34 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and tiabitities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disctosure of contingent

tiabitities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could resutt in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the

carrying amount of assets or tiabitities affected in future periods.

Judgements: In the process of apptying the company's accounting poticies, management has made the fottowing judgements, which

have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financiat statements:

Estimates and assumptions: The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a materiaI adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and tiabitities within the

next financial year, are described betow. The company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the

financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future devetopments, however, may change due to

market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the company. Such changes are reftected in the assumptions

when they occur.

lmpairment of non-financial assets: lmpairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its

recoverabte amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair vatue less costs of disposal

catcutation is based on avaitable data from binding sates transactions, conducted at arm's length, for simitar assets or observable

market prices less incrementat costs for disposing of the asset. The vatue in use catcutation is based on a DCF modet. The cash flows

are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not inctude restructuring activities that the company is not yet committed

to or significant future investments that wil,t enhance the asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is

sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as wett as the expected future cash-inftows and the growth rate used for

extrapotation purposes. These estimates are most retevant to goodwitt and other intangibtes with indefinite useful lives recognised by

the company.

Taxes; Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxabte profit witt be availabte

against which the losses can be utitised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax

assets that can be recognised, based upon the tikety timing and the levet of future taxabte

strategies.

with future tax ptanning

ai'
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SPML INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ending 31st March 2024

Fair value measurement of financial instruments: When the fair vatues of financial assets and financiat tiabitities recorded in the
batance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair vatue is measured using valuation techniques
inctuding the DCF model.. The inputs to these models are taken from observabte markets where possibte, but where this is not
feasibte, a degree of judgement is required in estabtishing fair vatues. Judgements inctude considerations of inputs such as tiquidity
risk, credit risk and votatitity. Changes in assumptions about these factors coutd affect the reported fair vatue of financial
instruments.

35 A disclosure with respect to segment reporting is not appticabte, since the Company operates in the simitar economic characteristics
for both the sate of products ancl for the sale of services and does not have more than one reportable segment.

36 Foreign Currency Earnings And Outgo Rs. Nit (PY - Rs. Nit)

37 There are no reported foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise, hence the
disctosure of the same is not made.

38 CIF vatue of imports Rs. Nit (PY - Rs. Nit).
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SPML INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ending 3 1 st March 2024

39 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

A Defined contribution scheme: The company does not have any emptoyee contribution scheme expenses.

B Defined benefit plans

Gratuity: In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act ot 1977, the Company contributes to a defined benefit plan (the "Gratuity Plan") covering

certain categories of employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested emptoyees at retirement, disabitity or termination of

emptoyment being an amount based on the respective emptoyee's tast drawn salary and the number of years of emptoyment with the Company.

The financial and demographic assumptions on annuat basis used for vatuation as at the Vatuation Date are shown betow, The assumptions as at the

Vatuation Date are used to determine the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obtisation at that date:

in Rs

Particu lars
As at

3'tst March 2024
As at

31st March 2023
Discount rate
Expected rate of increase in compensation level of covered emptoyees

Summary of Demographic assumptions:

7.48%

5.00%

7.48%

5.00%

Particu lars
As at

31st March 2024
As at

31st March 2023

Mortatity Rate (as % of IALM (2006-08) (Mod.) utt. Mortatity Tabte)

Disabitity Rate (as % of above mortality rate)
WithdrawaI Rate

NormaI Retirement Age

Adjusted Averaqe Future Service

1 00.00%

7.48%

s.00%

70 years

43.00 Years

1 00.00%

7.48%

5.00%

70 years
42.00 Years

in the defined benefit ob (Amount in Rs'000)

Particulars As at
3 1 st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

lDefined benefit obtigation at the beginning of the year
Current service cost
Net lnterest cost
sub-totat inctuded in profit or loss

Benefits oaid

Return on ptan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense)
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financiat assumptions
ActuariaI changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions
Experience ad j ustments
Subtotat inctuded in OCI

Contributions by employer
Defined benefit oblisation at the end of the vear

2.03
26.02

0.1 5

26.17
(451.92

1.47

448.37

449.79

26.07

70.53

2.03
5.19
7.22

(0.0s)

(75.67)
(7s._72)

2.03

The sensitivity anatyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapotates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of
reasonabte changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

in the fair value of plan assets: in Rs

Particulars As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Fair Vatue of Ptan Assets at the beginning
Interest lncome
Contributions by employer
Benefit Payments from Plan fusets
Remeasurements - Return on Assets (Exctuding Interest Income)
Fair Vatue of Ptan Assets at the end

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

A sfors for defined benefit oblieations are as shown below: in Rs'000

Particu lars
As at 31st March,2024 As at 31st March, 2023

lncrease Decrease lncrease Decrease
Discount rate by 0.5%

Expected rate of increase in compensation [eve[ of covered emptoyees by
1%

Withdrawat Rate bv 5%

-7.55

6.46
0.08

2.95

-4.88
-4.72

-0.20

0.50
-0.09

0.23

"0.38
-0.31

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

thin the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)

The average duration of the defined benefit ptan obtigation at the end of the reporting period is 15 years (31 March 2023: 15 years
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40 REL^TED PARTY DISCLOSURES:

A Intormrtlon Elrcn ln accordanc! with thc .cqulram.nB of Ind AS 24 on Ralatcd P.rty Di3closur6:
{i) Holding Company:

sPl'[ lnfra Limited

(ii) Sub,idhry:
Attahabad waste Preesring Company Ltd.
Mathura Nagar Waste Processing Company Ltd.
Sanmati Infradevelper5 Private Llmited 1w.e,f 4th August 2022, titt this date this company wa5 Associate)

Madurai ilunicipal waste Processlng Company Pvt. Ltd.
(iii) Ai5ociate Companici:

SPl4LlL . A/,IRUTHA Co6tr(tions Private Limited

(iv) Key M:n.gcrial PeBon:
M. Pukhrai Jain

Mr. Om Prakash Sharma

tr. Rajesh Xandoi

{v) companiea in which key M!n.geri.l Perronnal or relatives of KMP have signifiaction influence:

Subhash Xabini Power corrcratron Ljmited
Dethi waste ffinaqerent Limited iill 10.09.?022

b Acrrerate tranractlons with related Dartiet diiclorure:Aggregate tr.nr.ctlons with related partiet diiclotute

Transaction3 During the ye.r
Outibndinl b.l.naces at at the

and ot thc yc.r

As at llst L,4arch 2021

" outstnading balarce are excl6ive of provision for impairerenl

C Terms .nd condition, of tr.n3actioni wlth related Dartie3

market In which tiE related party operate5.

!te



SPML INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ending 3lst March 2024

41 Fair valueg
The carrying vatue and fair vatue of financial instruments by category:

Assets and liabillties carried at amortised cost

The management assessed that cash and cash equivatents, trade receivables, trade payables, and other current tiabitities

approximate their carrying amounts Iargely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair vatues of the Companies interest-bearing borrowings and toans are determined by using DCF method using discount

rate that reftects the issuer's borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own nonperformance risk as at 31

March 2024 was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair vatues of the unquoted equity shares have been estimated using a DCF model. The vatuation requires management to

make certain assumptions about the modet inputs, including forecast cash ftows, discount rate, credit risk and votatitity' The

Drobabilities of the various estimates within the range can be reasonabty assessed and are used in management's estimate of

fair vatue for these unquoted equity investments.

Assets and liabilities carried at fair values through Other ComPrehensive Income

Fair value hierarchy

Levet 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identicat assets or tiabitities.

Levet 2: Significant observable inputs other than quoted prices included in tevet 1 that are observabte for the asset or tiabitity'

either directty (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Levet 3: Significant unobservabte inputs for the assets or tiabitities that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).

42

in Rs

Particulars
Carrying Value Fair Value

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Financlal assets

lnvestments
Loans

Other non-current financiat Assets

Trade Receivables

Cash and cash equiva[ents
Other Current Financial Assets

1,12,671._50

1,500.00

3,838.34
1,095.94

3,1 84.01

1,12,671.50
18,481.22

1,500.00

11 ,043.34
5,130.04

29.389.76

36.01

1,500.00
3,838.34
1,095.94
3. 1 84.01

1,01,055.68
18,481.22

1,500.00
11,043.34

5,330.04
29.f89.26

fotal 1.22.?89.79 1,78,415.36 9.654,30 1 ,66,799.54

Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Trade Payabtes

Other current financiat liabitity

58,112.19
7 q1i 1R

547 .51

48,474.43

13,469.26
1 .307 .70

58,117.19
7,511.18

547.51

48,474.43
13,469.26

't.307.70

Total 66.1 70.88 63.251.39 66.1 70.88 63.25't.39

ln

Particulars
Carrv'ine Value Fair Value

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Financial assets

Investments

Less Provision for lmDairment
1 ,40,867 .66

(1 ,40,867.66)

1 ,21 ,877.66
1 ,21 ,877.661

1 ,40,867 .66
( .40,867 .661

1 ,21 ,877.66
(1 .21 .877.66r,

Tota I

in Rs

Particulars Fair value
hierarchy

(Level)

Fair value
As at 31 March

zo24
As at 31 March

zo23

A Financial Assets

a) l,leasured at amortised cott
Investments(Unquoted)
LOanS

Security deposit receivabte

Trade Receivables

Cash And Bank Batances

Advance Paid To Staff
Arbitration Ctaims Receivable

B FinancialLiabilities
a) \$easured at amortised cost

',. forrowingsI Trade Payabtes

I ftrrent Maturities of loan obtigation' 
Jnterest accrued but not due

1

1

'|

1

L

2

1

1

1

1 ,12,671.-50

1,500.00
3,838.34
1,095.94

1 3.50
29,377 .42

58,112.19
7,511.18

545.49
2.02

1,12,671.50
18,481.22

1,500.00
1 1,041.34
5,330.04

1 1.84

29,377 .42

48,474.43

13,469.26

1,298.35

9. l5

ft'ere were no transfers between Levet 1, 2 and Levet 3 during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023



SPA4L INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ending 31st March 2024

43 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financiat liabitities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payabtes, and financiaI guarantee

contracts. The main purpose of these financial tiabitities is to finance the Company"s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The

company's principal financiat assets inctude toans, trade and other receivabtes, and cash and cash equivatents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and tiquidity risk. The Company's senior management oveBees the management of these risks. The

Company's senior management is supported by a financiat risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance

framework for the company. The financiat risk committee provides assurance to the company's senior management that the companyrs financial risk

activities are govemed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the

company's poticies and risk objectives.

Market risk
Market risk i5 the risk that the fair vatue of future cash f(ows of a financial instrument will ftuctuate because of changes in market prices. A,tarket risk

comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financiat instruments

affected by market risk inctude loans and borrowings, deposits, FVTOCI investments and derivative financial instruments.

lnterest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ftows of a financial instrument wilt ftuctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates reiates primarily to the company's long-term debt obtigations with ftoating
interest rates. The company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfotio of fixed and variabte rate loans and borrowings,

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obtigations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial [oss. The
company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarity trade receivables) and from its financing activities, inctuding deposits with banks

and financial institutions and other financia{ instruments.

Liquidity risk
The Company monitors its risk of a shonage of funds using a tiquidity ptanning tool.

The table betow summarises the maturity profite of the Company's financial {iabitities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

in Rs

As at 3lst March 2024 On Demand
Less than 3

months

More than 3

months to 12

months

llore than 'l

year Total

Borrowngs
frade Payable
)ther current finan.ial liabilitv

10,373.20

7,511.18
2.02 545.49

47,738.99 58,112.19
7,511.18

547.51

As at 31st March 2023 On Demand
Less than 3

months

l{ore than 3

months to 1 2

montns

More than 1

year Total

Borrowings

frade Payabte
Other current financial liabiLitv

10,692.89

1J,445.06
9.35

455.99

1 .298.35

13,103.25 44,252. t3

13,445.06

1.307.70

Excessive risk concentration
Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in simitar business activities, or activities in the same geographicat region, or have
economic features that woutd cause their abitity to meet contractual obtigations to be simitarly affected by changes in economic, potiticat or other
conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a particutar industry.
In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company's policies and prtredures include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a

diversified portfotio. ldentified concentrations of credit risks are controlted and managed accordingty. Setective hedging is used within the Group to
manase risk concentrations at both the relationshio and industru levels.

44 Capital manaSement
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital inctudes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributabte to the equity
hotders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company's capitat management is to maximise the sharehotder vatue. The company manages its
capital Structure and makes adjustments in (ight of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Gcompany may adjust the dividend payment to sharehotders, return capitat to sharehotdeB or issue new shares. The

company moniton capitat using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital ptus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest
bearing [oan5 and borrowings, trade and other payabt6, less cash and cash equivatents.

Rs'000)tn

Particulars As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2O23

Borrowings

Trade payabtes

Other current financiat tiability
Other current liabitity
Less: cash and cash eouivalents

58,112.19
7,511.18

547.51

24,434.67
tl 095 94t

48,474.43

13,469.26
1,307.70

14,197.44
(5.330.04)

Net Debt 89,509.6 1 72,118.79

Equity
Capitat Reseryes

Security premium

Other equitv

7,434.67

4J3.44
5,88,762.66

{6.80.051.98}

7,4J3.U
65.06

5,88,762.66

14.37.535.78)
Total Eouitv .83,421.21 1,58,724.98
Gearinq ratio 1 470.17n 31,24i

In order to achieve this overatt objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants
attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would
permit the bank to immediatety calt loans and borrowings.
No changes were made in the objectives, poticies or prcesses for managing capitat during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

,I
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SPML INFMSTRUCTURE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ending 31st March 2024

45 (a) Summary of merger

During the year the Doon Vattey Waste Management Private Limited (Transferor Company) merged with the

company through the merger order dated 23.06.2073 by Nationat Company Law Tribunat. The merger is

effective from 01 .04.2022. The transferror company was in the business of cottection and processing of

Waste.

Detaits of the ourchase consideration, the net assets acqulred and

Purchase consideration
Doon Valley Waste

Management Private Limited

Cash oaid Nit

Eouitv shares issued Nit
:ontinopnt consideration Ntt

Total ourchase consideration Nil

a[ reserve are as fottows:

The assets and tiabitities recognised as a result of the acquisition are as fottows:

Particulars
Doon Valley Waste

Management Private Limited

Fair value
Motor Vehicle 10,02, s49.00

Provision for Depreciation (9.96.320.00

Cash 887.00

Bank Account 3,099.47

Fixed Deoosit 92,500.00

IDS Pavabte (944.00\

Trade payabtes (66,961.00

Borrowinqs (42,22,304.00

Deffered Tax Liabitity (69,40,014.00)

Net identifiable assets acquired (1 ,11,27,5O7.53)

Calculation of goodwill
Doon Valley Waste

AAanagement Private Limited

Consideration transferred 1,14,94,267-

Non-controtling interest in the
acquired entitv

1,625

Acquisition date fair vatue of
oreviouslv hetd eouitv interest
Less: Net identifiabte assets acquired 1,11,27 ,508

Caoital Reserye 3,68,379

The Capitat Reserve is attributabte to the loss incurred by the merged business.

Acquisition related costs

As per the Nationat Company Law Tribunat order, the transferee Company has paid Rs. 25 thousand to Prime

Minister National Reteif Fund and Rs. 75 thousand to Regional Director, South East Region that were not

directly attributabte to the issue of shares are included in other expenses in profit orJoss+nd in operating

cash flows in the statement of cash ftows.

rt
''l



42A X;
1 F x=il ! ;x
o v gi4

= 
d;a d'c:. -^a 6J6 f -r x;

; 1n
o ;!
? 5=

x qe

?.<oo
9o

of

9=*E
3pgo
+!
_=

=
t

:

oo1099900

m6?6666@h
ad! 6
oo6000006<< n<oo "oooooooo=o
ji; xx==itood660000ddIaAaaB3
r r 16 o : ai ig9;='=-9833
Ero4fp;<<

==:.**aB;fio o a!: o :-'o !
H:*E9;qrF
AArs*A3q;€:ag;€63n
AABiea:14
! ! e-: ; ! I * s;;:ie i I x i
;si:E';gee;x ! X l; &; I{?b96*;€i
s a i€ a f F fr 999;=H9r6&
b b E 5; b j'' drrlE9rl+1;; a i* ; h { i
66a=;oxoJ

39ii3 i+it7
-q 3 3;;3;= I
; ; f i Q n;; p

fi{ilggf,rF
;a x [E; sEa-ea [99

3 i ='6 5'
!o
Pa 

= 
9-6-a o 
^'6a 6 
=e;'3 d

z= 
^ 

n
=6 0 0i; n
-<t. 

6
E3 1
-o .of
ox
9doo
d6

6d
g.
t' 3'

qg #iq ii ilg -,\tri

rl c i; $i rii 
a;gglg3iiii*iiarri

ri F+i ie 
'ia i;flists 

*f E F3 tE

;€3*giiisff
q i+; * :I ii6ii f3i i 3i Eii'
t ia$ s cC g+i4
? i E I ?- 

il$;s 3 ; n ei ,*,,
E i a Es :Egq; r I st s+*r
F I E 3; H;56-E d i 3i 6.i{s
d ; 4 2 c i{6a

$igrq;Eia i 
^ 

rl,i ; 4 qE sCH

E a i ei *{c
E a i ;r ;Ft
t .c :: dd 8;d

l ; i frl 4et
d E i 1i Eig*ig*ir:i
iiiEiiii ; xg irqg < =.< Fqa ; e1 5sl

$+#3s4E I qf i3i
E I :'e lHt.: e6 ei:

z
oo!6ur-p-9f,

o

EF T{g13 +53
N@ i - t!6 4 -

H- N

d

6i :ib'.. iY ^; g )

;€ i's..Aa.
6:.

:'-/'


